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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of EMAMI REALTY LIMITED
(Formerly Emami Infrastructure Limited)

Report on the Audit of theStandalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanyingStandaloneFinancial Statements of EMAMI REALTY
LIMITED(Formerly Emami Infrastructure Limited)('the Company"), which comprise the balance
sheet as at 31% March 2019, and the statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flow for the year ended on that date,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatary information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
' ("the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
' accounting Standrads prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards )Rules,2015,as amended ,("Ind AS")and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, the profit and total
comprehensive income , changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditingspecified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013(SAs). Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics Issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our apinion on the

standalone financial statements,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that in our professional judgement, were of most significance of
our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current pericd, These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole and forming opinion
thereon and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters We have determined the matters
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
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Key Audit Matter Auditor's Response

1) Accuracy of Recognition, We assessed the Company's process to
measurement,  presentation  and identify the impact of adoption of new revenue
disclosures of revenues and other accounting standard. Our audit approach
related balances in view of Adoption of consisted testing of the design and operating
*"_?h Asgjsmg?;:ﬂ us (:":: c‘::::_l"ts effectiveness of internal controls and
wi e ue 2 : .
accounting standard), substantive testing as follows:
The application of the new revenue a) Evaluated the design of intemal

contrels relating to implementation of
the new revenue accounting
standards.

b) Selected a sample of continuing and
new confracts and tested the
operating effectiveness of internal

recagnition accounting standard involves
certain  key |udgements relating fto
identification of distinct  performance
obligations, determination of transaction
price. of the identified performance

obligations, the appropriateness of the control relating to identification of the
basis used to measure revenue recognized distinct performance obligations and
over a period. determination of transaction price.

) c) Selected a sample of continuing and
In terms of Ind AS 115 w.e.f. Ist April,2018, new contracts and performed the
revenue is recognised at a point of time procedures:
upen satisfaction of performance obligation i) Read, analysed and identified the
at an amount that reflects the consideration distinct performance obligations.
to which the entity excepts to be entitled in i) Compared these performance
exchange for transfer of goods or services obfigations with that identified and

recorded by the company.

ii} Considered the terms of the contracts
to determine the transaction price.

ilv) Samples in respect of revenue
recorded for time and material
contracts were tested using contracts
agreements, customer acceptance.

to a customer.

2) Accuracy et Recognition, Our audit procedure included testing the
g}::f;:ﬁ:::méf & Oir:; ﬁl;:iaélr?nwurkm}: design, implementaton and operating
progress and Finished products. effectiver!ess of cor?truls Ip respect of review of

construction work in progress, particularly in

Construction Work-in-Frogress  includes respect of timing of the capitalization and
cost of land, premium for development recording of additions to items of various
rights, construction costs, allocated interest categories of Finished goods with source
and expenses attributable to the projects documentation,  substantive  testing  of
undertaken by the Company.The Company appropriateness of the cut-off date considered
has incurred  expenses  amounting for project capitalization.We tested the source
Rs.34,502.55 lakhs for development in documentation to determine whether the
projects during the year. Out of expenditure is of relating to project
construction work In progress amounting development nature and has been
Rs. 56,74 .41 lakhs has been converted to appropriately approved and segregated into

Finished Goods, appropriate categories. We reviewed operating
expenses to determine appropriateness of
accounting. Further, through sites visits, we
physically verified existence of consfruction

work in progress.
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Emphasis Matters

The Company is 10% partner in Lohitka Properties LLP, Mumbai which is developing a real estate
project, presently under construction. The accounts for the above entity are not yet finalized and thus
not made available to the Company for incorparation in its accounts.

Accordingly, no effect of the profitability, if any, relating to the above entity has been considered in the
accounts. Our conclusion on the statement is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information Other than the standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information.The other information
comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report,
Management Discussion and Analysis Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder Information
but dees not include the standalone financlal statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financlal statements does net cover the other Information and we do not express
any form of assurance canclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
ather information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materfally inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audlt, or otherwise appears to be

materially misslated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act') with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
staterments that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind
AS and other accounting principles generally accepted In India. This responsibility also Includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
Irregularities, selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting recards, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the standalonefinancial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the gaing concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but fo do so.

That Beard of Directors are alsc responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process:
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financlal statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but js not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit, We alsa:

« |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud Is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate Internal financial controls system In place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

+  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion, Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a geing concern.

+  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves falr presentation.

Materiality Is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, make it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in
(i} planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.
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We also communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal corntrol that
we identify during cur audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on cur independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of standalone financial statements of current period and are therefore key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when in extremely rare circumstances, we dstermine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasanably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that;
(@) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and

belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(B) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

{c} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit-and Loss Including Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash
Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are In agreement with the
books of account:

(d) In our opinion, the accompanying standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31"March, 2019 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified as on 31* March, 2019 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act,

() With respect to the adequacy of the infernal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A", Our report
expresses an unmadified opinion on the adeguacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal
financial controls over financial reporting.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(18) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our Information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of
section 187 of the Act.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditer's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i, The Cempany has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses: and

fii,  There is no such sum which needs to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.
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2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order 2016 (the "Order’) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act,we give in "Annexure B" a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,
ForS K Agrawal& Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.306033E

e

i K. Choudhury
Partner

Place: Kolkata {Membership No. 009367)

Date: 30" May, 2019
UDIN:- 1900367 AAAABLAGIA
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ANNEXURE “A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under 'Report on Cther Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of
our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i)
ofSubsection 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial contrals over financial reporting of EMAMI REALTY LIMITED
(Formerly Emami Infrastructure Limited)as of March 31, 2019 to the extent of records available
with us in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company as of and for the year
ended 31 March, 2019,

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Confrols

The Company’'s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the Intermal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of Internal cantrol stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India ('ICAl'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial centrols that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's pelicies, the safeguarding of Its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting recerds, and the timely preparation of reliable financial Information, as required under the

Act.
Auditor's Responsibility

QOur responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company based on our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Contrals Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") Issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of intemal financial
controls,both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both Issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Nofe require thal we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reascnable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls aver financial reporting was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively In all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reperting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial contrals over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of Internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the refiability of financial reparting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, In reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
Iransactions and dispositions of the assats of the company,

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only In
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition  of the company's assets that could have a material effect on

the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial contrals over financial reparting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of contrals, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may oceur and not be detected, Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reparting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinicn, to the best of our Information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over financial reparting criteria
established by the Campany considering the essentials components of the internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india.

For.S K Agrawal&Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No.306033E)

%MJZ-\JW“@- ;
J.K, ury

Partner
(Membership No. 009367)

Place: Kolkata
Date: 30" May, 2019

UDIN:- 1800367 AAAABL46IA
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ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report of aven date)

(i} (a)The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
detalls and situation of Property, Plant & Equipment, Investment property and Intangible assets.

(b)The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its Property, Plant &
Equipment by which Property, Plant & Equipment are verified in a phased manner. In accordance
with this programme, certain Property, Plant & Equipment were verified during the year and no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

{(c)According to information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the title deeds of Immovable properties are held in the name of the
Company,

(i) The Inventories have been physically verified during the year by the management at regular
intervals. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on physical verification,

(i) The Cempany has granted unsecured loans to companies cavered in the Register maintained under
section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act)). In respect of such loans:

a) In our opinion, the rate of interest and other terms and conditions on which loans has been
granted to the company listed in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act Is not,
prima facie, prejudicial to the interest of the company. _

b) In case of the loans granted to the company listed in the register maintained under section 189
of the Act, the borrowers have been regular in the payment of the principal and interest as
stipulated.

c) There are no overdue amounts in respect of the loan granted to the company listed in the
register maintained under section 188 of the Act,

{iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of section 185 of the Act with respect to the loans, investments,
guarantees and securities made.Further the provisions of section 186 of the Act with respect to the
loans, investments, guarantees and securities are not applicable to the Company,being an
Infrastructure Company as defined under Schedule VI to the Act.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73 to 76 of the Act and
the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules 2014 as amended.

(vi) As explained to us, the Company is not required to maintain cost records prescribed by the Gentral
Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act.

(vil) (&) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the books of account. and records, the Company has been generally regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax,
Sales taxGoods & Services Tax,Cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate
authorities. According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of the above were in arrears as at March 31, 2019 for a period of more than six
months from the date on which they became payable. During the year, the compapy-gig-not have
any dues towards duty of excise and duty of custom. .

Branch Offica : Cho, SKN INDUSTRIAL HOUSE, 320, SHYAMSHANT! MARKET, 3RD FLOGR, ROOM NO. 160, AJMER| BATE, DELHI-110 006, PH. - 9811103605
ATO1, EXPRESS ZONE BUILDING, WESTERN EXPRESS HIGHWAY, GORGADN EAST (NEAR OBERDI MALL) MUMBAI - 400 053
HIG-2121, SATYAS| ENCLAVE, KHANDAGIRI, BHUBANESWAR, ORISSA-731030
4082, ADARSH NAGAR, DURGA MANDIR ROAD, HIRAPLIR, DHANBAD - 625 001, T 1 94301 36226
A81, MITRA COMPOUND, BORING ROAD, PATNA-800 001, = : 59035 90022
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{b)According to the information and explanations glven to us, there are no material dues in respect of
Sales Tax, Income Tax, Custom Duty, Geods & Services Tax and Cess except the following:

Name of Mature of Amount under | Financial Year to Forum where
the Statute Dues dispute not yet | which the the dispute
deposited amount relates | is pending
{Rs. In Lacs)
Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax 55.64 2015-2016 &2016 Commissioner
17 of Kolkata South
i | CGST & CX.

{viil) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the management,
the Campany has not defaulted in the repayment of dues ta banks, financial Institutions and
debenture holders.

(ix) To the best of our knowledge and belief and accarding to the information and explanations given to
us, term [oans availed by the Company were applied by the Company far the purposes for which the
loans were obtained. The Company did not raise any moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instrument) during the year.

(x) According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or on
the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

(xl) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has pald or provided for
managerial remunerations in accordance with the requlsite approvals mandated by the provisions of
section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

{xily In our opinion, the Company is nat a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3 (xii) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(¥iiiy In our opinian, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188
of the Act and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) According to the Information and explanations given to us and based on our examination cof
records, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible dsbentures during the year.

(xv) According to the Information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of records
of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with Directors or
persons connected with them. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not
applicable.

{(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1834,

For S K Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registratjion No.30603
Ldgne
J.K.C

Partner
(Membership No. 009367)

Flace: Kolkata
Date: 30" May, 2019
UDIN:- 1900367 AAAABL4BIA

Branch Offica * Clo, SKN INDUSTRIAL HOUSE, 320, SHYAMSHANTI MARKET, 3RD-FLOOR, ROOM NO. 160, AJMER| GATE, DELHI10 0C6, PH, : 8811104505
ATOT, EXPRESS ZONE BUILDING, WESTERN EXPRESS HIGHWAY, GORGAON EAST (NEAR OBERCI MALL) MUMBA| - 400 083
HIG-2M27, SATYASI ENCLAVE, KHANDAGIRI, BHUBANESWAR, ORISSA-751 000
48872, ADARSH NAGAR, DURGA MANDIR ROAD, HIRAPUR, DHANBAD . B26 001, = : 94301 36226
591, MITRA COMPOUND, BORING RCAD, PATNA-200 001, = : BA025 00022



EMAMI REALTY LIMITED

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 20149

(& ks
As at As at
Note 315t March 2019 31st March 2018
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, Mantand Equipment 2 84.24 115.78
mvestment Property 2 5,93h.51 5,729.72
Intangible Assets 2 63,00 60,14
Financial Asseis
Investments 3 19, 146,45 17,441 46
Leans 4 37,009,009 3162670
Other Financial Assels 5 725.00 88600
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) ] 42540 549,13
Other Non Current Assets 7 122,47 90,45
Taotal Non-Current Assets 63,602.16 56,499,348
Current Assets
Inventories 8 1,43,409.39 1,14491.25
Financial Assets
Investments a9 399 564 38062
Trade Receivables . 14 LE0R.T0 -
Cash and Cash Equivalents 11 816.26 81802
Bank Balance other than above 12 46373 325.51
Loans 13 1,18,6749.92 91,1458 91
Other Financial Assets 14 1,803.35 106,80
Current Tax Assets (Net) 15 1.373.06 1.577.58
Other Current Assets 16 7,527,641 5,685.63
Total Current Assets 2,75,983.61 2,16,539.32
TOTAL ASSETS 3,39,585.77 2,73,038.70
FEQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital 17 558,78 558.78
Other Equity 18 15,682.93 15,359.93
Total Equity 16.241.71 15,918.71
Non-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 19 7191571 96,254 81
Other Non-Current Liabilities n 35132 -
Provisibns 21 12933 190156
Total Non-Current Liabilities 72,996,36 96,445.67
Current Liabilities
Finandial Liabilities
Borrowings 22 1,19,817.34 56,424.35
Trade Pavables 23
Total outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises - .06
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro Enlerprises and
Small Enterprises 990.94 1,135.38
Other Financial Liabilitios 24 72314 53,548.70
Chither Current Liabilities 25 51,884.12 4954848
Provisions 26 132.16 14.35
Total Current Liabilities 2,50,347.70 1,60,671.32
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 3,39,585.77 2,73,038.70

Summary of Signiticant Accounting Palicies and

Noles to Financial Statements Lto57

As per our report of even date Forand on behall of the Board of Dircctors
For 5 K Agrawal & Co

Chartered Accountants F_”J("?“*L-“»’GE: 7y i D ¢

" s ::L cré
Firm Registration No. J06033E Abhijit Dalta Hari Mafah Marda t‘gﬁ}mw Choudhify
L L Chadrman tir Nhole-tme Direclor & CFO

= DIN: 00790029 /r[):::‘r 00855466 DIN: D821 762

L houdhury S
Parlner “Jouyel I’%qr'ﬂ
ML No. 009367 Fayel Jhin

Place: Kolkata

Date: 30th May, 2019

Campany Secritary
ALCS 22418

=Kecutivie Otficor



EMAMI REALTY LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2019

[ & it Lakhs)

: Year ended Year ended
Pastioularg Note  31gt March, 2019 31st March, 2018
INCOME
Revenue [rom Operations 27 6,374.59 146.73
Other Income 28 13,1537.69 11,883.18
Total Revenue () 19,532.28 12,029.91
EXPENSES
FPurchases 29 1.7 6,101.53
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Stock-in-'Trade and
Work-in-Progress 30 {28,918.14) {32,235.57)
Employee Benefils Expense 31 1,645.72 1,482.18
Finance Costs 32 26,706.82 21,372.13
Project Expenses 33 18,669.96 14,149.02
Depreciation & Amortisation Expense 7289 42.88
Other Expenses 34 441.78 841.26
Total Expenses (II) 19,330.20 11,753.43
Profit before tax (I-1T) 202.08 276,48
Tax Expenses

Current Tax - 197.67
MAT Credit Entitlement - (115.25)
Deferred Tax 123.75 (62.16)
Income Tax paid/Refund for Earlier Years 533 (122.63)
Profit for the year 73.00 378.85
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be subsequently reclassified to statement of
TProfit or Loss
Remeasurements gains/ (loss) on the defined benefit plan {0.00) 9.76
Changes in fair valuation of equily instruments 250.00 -
Income Tax on above 0.00 (3.38)
Total Other Comprehensive Income for the year 250.00 6.38
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 323.00 385.23
Earnings per Equity Share of face value of ¥2/- each
Basic & Diluted 35 0.26 1.36
70.00 represents amount less than T100
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and 11657
Notes to Financial Statements
For and on behalf of the Board of Directars
As per our report of even date
For 8 K Agrawal & Co N PO DA
Chartered Accountants Alr]mll Dﬂtra Hari Muh.uvh -.-lrda g{ﬁﬁlfiumar(h udhary
Chairman - Dtrectur Thole-time Director é& CFO

Firm Registration No. 306033E _
¢ DIN: E’Jumﬂﬂ:@/ DIN: 00855466 DIN; 00821762

7z Tauel F
o TO0-2 G e
A r\]
ar Gupta Payel jain

xecutive Officer Campany Secretary
ACS 22418

J. K. Choudhury
Partner

M. No. 00v3s7
Place: Kolkata

Date: 30th May, 2019



EMAMI REALTY LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2019

(& m Laklis)

Year ended Year ended
31 March, 2019 31 March, 2018
A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Profit before tax 202.08 27648
Add: Adjusted for
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 72.89 4288
Finance Costs 26,835.10 21,945.47
Share of Loss in LLP - 8.22
Expenses from Investment measured at amortised cost - 90.13
Dividend Received {116.47) (116.49)
Profit on Sale of Non-Current Investment - (23.00)
Profit on Sale of Current Investments - (0.10)
Profit on sale of Units of Mutual Funds (6.78) (0.84)
Profit/ (Loss) on Sale of Fixed Assets 1.16 (1.06)
Income from Investmenl measured at amortised cost (150.41) -
Interest Income (12,372.92) (11,313.02)
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 14,164.65 10,908.67
‘djusted for:
Other Non-Current Liabilities 951.32 -
Non-Current Provisions (61.53) 3745
Trade Payables (147.51) (747.68)
Other Financial Liabilitics 1,331.40 39,11
Other Current Liabilities 2,335.64 +4,914.96
Current Provisions 117.81 3.70
Loans (5,472.39) (208.47)
Non-Current Other Financial Assels 161.00 55.60
Other Non-Current Assets (32.02) (0.04)
Inventories (28,918.14) (31,676.62)
Trade Receivables (1,508.70) -
Other Tinancial Assets 0345 (B65.46)
Currenl Tax Assets (Net) 204.52 (729.09)
Other Current Assets (1,842.01) 73457
Cash Generated from Operations (18,412.51) (17,533.30)
Less: Taxes Paid 533 (40.21)
Net Cash from Operating Activilies (A) (18,417.84) (17,493.09)

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment, Investment Property, Intangible Assets,

Intangible Assets under Development (254.05) (1:227.53)
Sale of Fixed Assets 1.86 -
Purchase of units of Mutual Funds (2.650.00) (600.00)
Sale of units of Mutual Funds 2,656.78 600.84
(Investments in)/IProceeds from Non Current Investments (1.004.57) 675.00
(Investments in)/ Proceeds from Fixed Depaosit {140.22) 611.11
Proceeds from Current Investments (13.94) 415
Dividend Received 116.47 11649
Loans Given (28,954.31) (21,471.88)
Loans Realised 11,149.76 15,217.03
Interest Recoived 2,646.47 3,723.14
Net Cash from Investing Activities (B) (16,445.75) (2,351.65)




EMAMI REALTY LIMITED

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st Marcl, 2019

C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds from Borrowings

Repayment of Borrowings

Interest Paid

Net Cash from Financing Activities (C)

Net increase/(decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)

(i Laklis)
Year ended
31 March, 2018

Year ended
31 March, 2019

3,02,095.55 1,61,964.86
(278630.26)  (1,32,215.01)
(21,003.38) (23,336.42)
2,457.91 6,413.44

(32,405.68) (13,431.30)

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year * (16,608.09) (2,042.98)
Add: Transferred from Amalgamating Company as at 1st April 2017 = (1. 133.81)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year * (49,013.77) (16,608.09)
Notes to Statement of Cash Flows
1. Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents as per the Slatement of Cash Flows
Cash and Cash Equivalents as per the abave comprise of the following:

Asat As at
Tarticulars March 31, 20019 March 31, 2018
Cash and Cash Equivalents 816.26 518,02
Bank Overdraft which forms an integral part of cash management system (49,830.03) (17.426.11)
Total {49,013.77) (16,608.09)

2. The above Statement of Cash Flow has been prepared under the "indirect method" as set out in IND AS-7 "Statement

af Cash Flows"

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Financial Statements

As per our IEPGI’I: of even date

For S K Agrawal & Co

Chartered Accountants '.C"\r\}? Fa e G%W\f’l /

Firm Registration No. 306033E Abhijit Datta Hari hlohan Marda
Chairman Trector

/?mf Lﬂy’.ﬂ’ DIN: (0855466
J. K Choudhury
Partner

. No. 009367
Place: Kolkata

Date: 30th Ma}?, 2019

DIN: 007900129

1t057

Far and on behall of the Board of Directors

A A
Atija Kumar Choudhdry

Whole-time Director & CFQ
DIN: 00821762

")(dq('«l Qe‘”' Bl
Payel Jain
Company Secretary
ACS 22418
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EMAMI REALTY LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements

1.1 Corporate Overview

Fmami Realry Limited (Formery Emami Infrastructure Limited) (“the Company™) is a public
company domiciled in India and incorporated on 47 January, 2008 under the provisions of the
Compantes Act applicable in India. 1ts shares are listed on the BSE Limited (BSE), The National Stock
lixchange of India Limited (NSE) and The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limired (CSE). The registered
office of the Company is located at Acropolis, 13" Floor, 1858/1 Rajdanga Main Road, Kasba,
Kolkata — 700107.

The Company is carryving on the business of real estate development.

The standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31* March, 2019
were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of directors an 30" May, 2019.

1.2 Basis of Preparation of financial statements

These financial statements for the year ended 31" March 2019 have been prepared in accordance with
[ndian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS™) prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013
(“Act”) read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and the
Companies (Indian Accounting Srandards) Amendment Rules 2016. These financial statements are
prepared under the hisrorical cost conversion on the accrual basis except for certain financial
instruments which are measured at fair values,

1.3 Amendments issued to Ind AS, but not effective

On 30" March 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™) has notified the INI AS 116 Leases and
Appendix C of Ind AS 12 “Tncertainty over Income Tax Treatment and amendments to Ind AS 19,
Employee benefits in connection with accounting for plan amendmients, curtailments and sertlements.
The effecrive date for adoption of the same is financial periods beginning on or afrer 1" April 2019,
‘The Compaany is in the process of evaluating the applicability and its effect on adoption.

1.4 Significant Accounting Policies
1.4.1 Operating Cycle

The Operanng Cycle is the nme berween the acquisiion of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has evaluated and considered its operating
cycle as 3 ta 5 years and accordingly has reclassified its assets and habilities into current and non-

CULTCNT.

An asset is reated as currenr when it is:

- Pxpected to be realised or to be sald or consumed in normal operanng cyele

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cush equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for ar
least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classthed as non-current.

A liability 18 current when:




EMAMI REALTY LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements

- Tris expected to be sertled in normal eperatng cycle

- Itis held pnmarily for the purpose of trading
It 1s due to be sertled within twelve months afrer the reporting period, or

- There s nouncondinonal right to defer the setlement of the liabilitv for at least rwelve months
after the reporting period

Al other liabilines are classified as non-current.
1.4.2 Foreign Currency Transactions & Translations

The funcoonal currency of the Company is Indian rupees. The Financial Statements are prepared
& presented in Indian rupees and has been rounded off to the nearest Lakhs, unless otherwise
stared.

Transacrions in foreign currencies entered into by the Company are translated ro the Company’s
functional currency ar the exchange rates prevailing on the date of transacton. Monetary assets
and labilities denominated in foreign currencies ar the reporting date are translited into the
funetional currency at the exchange rate at that date,

Foreign exchange gains and losses resuling from the settdement of transactions i foreign
currencies and from the transladon of monetary assets and liabilines denominated in foreign
currencies at vear end exchange rates are generally recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
at the exchange rates at the dates of transactions. Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates ar the date of the fair valuanon,
The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value s treated m
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (Le., translation
differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also
recognised in OCT or profit or loss, respectively).

1.4.3 Fair Value Measurement

The Company uses valuaton techniques that are appropriate in the crcumstances and for which
sutficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. All methods of assessing fair value result in general
approximation of value and such value may never acmually be realised.

Allassets and Labilites for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial starements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, deseribed as follows, based on the lowest level mnput
that 1s significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

a) Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) marker prices in active markers for identical assets or liabilities

h) Level 2 — Valuation rechniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly obseryvable

¢} Level 3 — Valuaton techniques for whichi the lowest level input that is significant to rthe fair

alue measurement is unobservable

[For assets and liabilittes that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring hasis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred berween levels in the Ju [ by re-




EMAMI REALTY LIMITED

Notes to Financial Stateinents

assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level mput that 15 sipnificant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting pertod.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assers and
liabilites on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of
the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

L.4.4 Use of Esumates and Judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformiry with Ind AS requires the management to
make estimates and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
(including contingent liabilities) at the end of the reporting period and the reported income and
expenses during the year. Although rhese estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge
of eurrent events and actions, uncertainry abour these assumptons and estimates could result in
the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the cartying amounts of assets o liabilities in
future periods.

1.4.5 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalenr in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-rerm
deposits with an onginal maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

1.4.6 Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost of acquisition, on current cost basis less
accumulated depreciation and aceumulated impairmeant, if any. Cost comprises purchase price and
directly arributable cost of bringing the asset o its working condition for the intended use. Any
trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving ar the purchase price.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant parr initially recognised is
derecognised upon dhp:ml or when no furare economic benefits are etpccti.d from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset is included in the income statement
when the asset is derecognised.

Depreciation is provided on written down value method over the estimated useful lives of
property, plant and equipment and are in line with the requirement of Part C of Schedule 1T of
the Companies Act, 2013.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed at each financial vear end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

1.4.7 Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets are recognized only when furure cconomic benefits arising out of the assets flow
to the enrerprise and are amornsed on Straight Line method over their estimarted useful life of five
years. Intangible assers acquired separately are measured on initial recognidon at cost. Following
initial recognition, intangible assets are carred at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.




EMAMI REALTY LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statemerits

1.4.8 Capital work-in-progress and intangible assets under development

Capital work-in-progress and mtangible assets under development are carned ar cosr, Cost
meludes land, related acquisinon expenses, development / construction costs, borrowing costs
and other direct expendirure.

149 Investment property & depreciation

)

(1)

Recogmition & measurement

Investment properties are properties held to eam rentals or for capital appreciation or both.
Investment properties are held ininally at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase
price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are mer and directly attributable cost of bringing the
asset to its working condition for the intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the company. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to Statement of profit and
loss as meutred.

Deprecianon on investment property is provided using the wnrren down method based on useful
lives specified in Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013.

1.4.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset mayv be
impatred. If any indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash generating umit’s (CGLU) ner selling
prce and its value in use. The recoverable amount 1s determined for an individual asser, unless
the asset does not generare cash mflows that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable

amount, the asset is considered impaired and 1s written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessmg value in use, the esnmated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the ime value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. In determuining net selling price, recent market transactions are
taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation

model is used.

1.4.11 Inventories

[nventones are valued ar lower of cost or Net Realisable value, except for construction-work-in
progress which is valued at cost.

Construction-work-in - progress includes cost of land, premium for development rights,
construction costs, allocared interest and expenses incidental ro the projects undermken by the
Company.

Net realizable value 1s the estimarted selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completon and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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1.4.12 Revenue recognition

Revenue 15 recognized when ir 15 probable thar the economic benefits will Bow o the Company
and it can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured ar the fair value of the consideraton
received /receivable net of rebate and mxes. The Company applies the revenue recognition criteria
1o each narure of revenue transacnon as below:

In rerms of Ind AS 115 w.ef. 1st Aprl, 2018, revenue to be recognised at a point of dme (project
completion method) upon sansfaction of performance obligation at an amount that reflects the
considetation to which the entiry expects to be entitled in exchange for transfer of goods or services
to customers. In the previous year, the Company had applied Ind AS 18 but no revenue was
recognised for under-construction properties since the risk and reward in relation ro the captioned
properties could not be ransferred to the customers. Accordingly, there is no impact oni the
revenue recognition due to adoption of Ind AS 115,

Interest Income is recognised using the effective interest method and is included under the head
‘Other Income’ in the Statement of Profir and Loss.

Dividend Income including share of profit in LLP is recognised when the Company’s nght to
receive dividend is established.

All other incomes are recognised on acerual basis.
1.4.13 Employee Benefits
a. Defined Contribution Plan - Provident Fund

The Compuny makes contributions towards provident fund to the regulatory authorites to a
defined contribution tetirement benefit plun for qualifying employees.

b. Defined Benefit Plan — Gratuity

The Company's liability is actuarially determined using the Projected Unit Credit method at
the end of the year in accordance with the provision of Ind AS 19 - Emplovee Benefits. The
Company recognizes the ner obligation of a defined benefit plan in its balance sheet as an asser
or lability. Gains and losses through re-measurements of the net defined benefir
liability/ (asset) are recognized in other comprehensive income and are not reclassified to profic
ot loss in subsequent periods. The effect of any plan amendments are recognized in the
Statemnent of Profit & Loss.

¢. Long Term Compensated Absences

"The Company's liability is actuarially determined using the Projected Unit Credit method at
the end of the year in accordance with the provision of Ind AS 19 - Employee Benefits, The
Company recognizes the net obligation of a defined benefit plan in irs balance sheet as an asset
or lability. Gains and losses through re-measurements of the net defined benefit
habiliry /(asset) are recognized in Statement of Profit & Loss.
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1.4.14 Income Taxes

1.4.15

Tax expense comprises current and deferred rax.

Current income-tx is measured ar the amount expected ro be paid ro the tax authorities in
accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India and tax laws prevailing in the respective
tax jurisdictions where the Company operates. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the
amount are those that are enacted or substantively énacted, at the reporting date.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet method, on temporary differences arising between
the rax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements at the
reporting date. Deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an
asset ot liability in 4 transaetion other than a business combination that ar the rime of the
transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred income tas is
derermined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacred by the end of
the reporting petiod and are expected to apply when the related deferred income rax asset is realised
or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred rax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses
only if it is probable that future taxahle amounts will be available to utlise those Ltetmporary
differences and losses,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed ar each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient raxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asser 1o be utlised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each
reporting date and are recognised to the exrent that it has become probable thar furure taxable
profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred rax assets and liabilities are offser when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax asscts and labilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current rax assets and tax labilites are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asser and settle the liability

simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax 15 recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.,

Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of timing differences between taxable income and
accounting income orginating during the current vear and reversal of timing differences for the
earlier years. Deferred tax is measured using the rax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively

enacted at the reporting date.
Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of
the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment
of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement

conveys a tght (o use the asset or assers, even if that right is no exp[icir}\‘,ﬁ?nﬁ'_@‘gd in an
AN
e |

arra ﬂgt‘.‘ T,
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[For arrangements entered into pror to | Apal 2016, the group has determined whether the
arrangement contain lease on the basis of facts and cireumstances esisting on the date of transition.

Agw a.fi’_l'.t'f,’:‘

A lease 15 classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operaring lease. A lease that
eransters substannally all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified

as a hnance lease.

Finance leases are capitalised ar the commencement of the lease at the inception date at the fair
value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease
payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to
achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability, Finance charpes are
recognised in finance costs in the statement of profit and loss, unless they are directly attnbutable
to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized in accordance with the Company’s general
policy on the borrowing costs (See note 1.4.17). Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in
the pertods in which they are incurred.

A leased asset 1s depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, il there is no reasonable
certainty that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is
depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the assef and the lease rerm.

Operating lease payments (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to Statement
of Profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the payments are
structured to increase in line with expected genetal inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected
inflatonary cost increases,

1.4.16 Provisions and Contingencies

A provision 15 recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of past event; it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefirs will
be required o settle the obligadon and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. The expense relating ro-a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used,
the inerease in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

A condngent lability s a possible obligation that arses from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyvond
the eontrol of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable
that an putflow of resources will be required to sertle the oblipation. The Company does not
recognize a conungent hability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

1.4.17 Borrowing Costs

Barrawing costs directly attrbutable ro the acquisition, construction or production of an asset thar
necessarly mkes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised
as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs )menr"ﬁaqun with

- i
R
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ocecur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and ather cosrs thar an entry mours i connecnion with
the borrowing of funds. Barrowing cost also includes exchange differences o the extent regarded
as an adjustment ro the borrowing costs.

1.4.18 Eamings per Share

Basic Farnings per Share s caleulated by dividing the netprotitor loss tor the period attmiburable
to equity sharcholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
pertod. For the purpose of caleulating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the
pertod artributable ro equity sharcholders and the weighted average number of shures outstanding
during the periad 1s adjusted for the effects ot all dilutive potential equity shares.

The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the penod and for all penods
presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity
shares thar have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change
i resources.

1.4.19 Financial Instruments

A financial instrument 15 any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one ennty and a financial
hability or equity instrument of another entity.

a. Financial assets
i. Initial recognition and measurement
All inancial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, m the case of financil assets
not recorded ar tair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable
to the acquisition of the Hnancial asset.

ii. Subsequent measurement
For purpases of subsequent measurement, Arancial assers are classified as

yelcw:

e Debt instruments at amaortised cost

e Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
FVTOCI

Debt instruments at amortised cost other than derivative contracts

A ‘debr instrument’ 1s measured at the amortised cost 1f both the following conditions

Are met:

o Ihe asset 15 held within a busingss model whose objective is to hold assets for
collecnng conrractual cash flows, and

o  Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of prncipal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding.

Afrer inital measurement, such fiinancial assers are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the cffective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost s caleulated by
taking mto account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an ntegral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is ncluded in fnance income in the
profit or loss. The losses ansing from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss.
This caregory generally applics to trade and other recervables. T
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iil,

iv.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured ar fur value other than
equity investments measured at deemed cost on first time adoption ot Ind AS as set out
m Note. Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FN'TPL. For
all other equity instruments, the Company decides to classify the same either as at
FYTOCI or FVTPL. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-
s trument basis. The classification 1 made on inttal recognition and s irevocable.,

If the Company dectdes to classify an equity instrument at FNTOCL, then all Fur value
changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCL There s no
recycling of the amounts from OCI to Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale of
mvestment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within
equuty.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL caregory are measured at fair value with
all changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asser or part of a Company
of similar fnancial assets) is primarily derecogmsed when:

e The nghts to receive cash Hows from the asset have expired, or

e the Company has transterred substantially all the rsks and rewards of the asser

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applics expected credit loss (ECL) madel

for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assers

and credit sk exposure:

e Financial assers that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g.,
loans, debr securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of mmpairment loss
Allowance on Trade recervables.

The application of mmpl:hcd approach does not require the Company to truck changes
in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime FClLs at
each reporting dare, right from its inital recogmnion.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument. ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash Hows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the entity expects o receive, discounted ar the original EIR. When
estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

o Al contracrual rerms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension,
call and similar options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However,
in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot he estimated
reliably, then the entity 1s required to use the remaining contractual term of the
financial instrument
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e Cash tlows from the sale of collareral held or other credit enhancements thar are

integral ro the contracrual rerms

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision marrix to determine impairment
loss allowance on portfolio of irs trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on irs
historically pbserved default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and 15
adjusted for forward-looking estmates. At every reporting date, the historical observed
defaulr rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized
as income/ expense in the statement of profir and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected
under the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various
financial instruments 1s described below:

e Financial assets measured at amortsed cost: ['CL is presented as an allowance, Le,,
as an integral part of the measurement of those assers in the balance sheet. The
allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria,
the group does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

For assessing increase in credit osk and impairment loss, the Company combines
financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective
of facilitaning an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credir nisk to
be 1dentified on a timely basis.

b. Financial habilines

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, investment in subsidiaries and joint venrures, net of directly
attributable transactuon costs.

The Company’s financial liahilities include trade and other payables, loans and
borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative
financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial labilides depends on their classification, as described

below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial hiabilities at fair value through profit or loss include derivatives, finaneial liabiliies
held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for rrading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes
derivative finaneial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as
hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded
denvarives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effecuve
hedging instruments,
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Finaneial liabilities designated upon ininal tecogaition at fair value through profit or loss
are designated as such at the minal date of recogninon, and only 1f the eriteria in Ind AS
109 are sausfied. For habilitics designared as I'N'TPL, fair value gains/ losses attriburable
to changes in own credit nisks are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not
subsequently tansterred ro P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulanve gain
or loss within equiry. All other changes 1n fair value of such hability are recognised in the
statement of profir or loss,

Borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecogmised as well as
through the EIR amottisation process.

Amortised cost 1s calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as
finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Trade receivables

Trade recervables are recognised tnitally at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effecrive interest methad, less allowance for doubtful debts,

Trade and other pavables

These amounts represent liabilittes for goods and services provided to the Company prior
to the end of financial year. The amounts are generally unsecured. Trade and other payables
are presented as current labilines unless payment 18 not due within the Company’s
operating cycle. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial guarantee contracts

Iinaneial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts thar require a
payment to be made to reimburse the lender for a loss it incurs because the specified
borrower fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a loan
agreement. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a lability at fair value,
acjusted for transaction costs thar are dircedy arrributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance
determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less
cumulative amortisation.

De-recognition

A financial hability is derecognised when the obligation under the liabiliry is discharged or
ancelled or expires. When an existing financial lability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantally different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
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of the onginal hability and the recognition of a new liabiliry. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the starement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assers and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal Hght to offser the recognised amounts
and there is an mnrention to settle on a ner basis, 1 realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

1.4.20 Segment Reporting

Based on the “management approach™ as defined in Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments, the Board
of Directors / Chief Operating Decision Maker evaluates the Company’s performance based on
an analysis of various performance indicators by business segment. Segment revenue and expenses
mnclude amounts which can be directly attriburable to the segment and allocable on reasonable
basis. Segment assets and liabilities are assets / liabilities which are directly atrributable to the
segment ot can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Income / expenses / assers / labilities relating
to the enterprise as a whole and nor allocable on a reasonable basis to business segments are
veflected as unallocated income / expenses / assets / liabilines.
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As at As at

31st March 2019  31st March 2018
(¥ in Lakhs) (¥ in Lakhs)

3 Investments (N - Current )
I. Investments in Equity Instruments
a. In Associates (Carried at cost)
Quoted fully paid up

Zandu Realty Limited = #,012.91
Nil (2,88,329) Cquity Shares of F100/ - each
Less: Cancelled on Amalgamaltion - 6:012.91
Unquoted fully paid up
Roseview Developers Private Limited 0.50 (.50
5,000 Equity Shares of T10/- each
Prajay Urban Private Limited (.50 0.50
5,000 Equity Shares of ¥10/- each
Bengal Emami Housing Limited 6.00 6.00
60,000 Equity Shares of T10/- each
Swanhousing & Infra Private Limited 69.00 69.00
6,890,000 Equity Shares of T10/- each

76.00 76.00

b. Other Investments (Carried at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income)

i. Unquoted fully paid up
['he North Kanara G.S.B. Co-Operative Bank Limited 0.50 0.50

5,000 Equily Shares of T10/- each

The Saraswat Co-op. Bank Limited 0.10 0.10
1,000 Equity Shares of T10/-each
Natural Synergies Limited 41.68 11.68
4,16,75() Equity Shares of T10/- each
Emami Agrotech Limited 1,028.57 650.00
11,42,857 (10,00,000) Equity Shares of ¥10/- each
1,070.85 6Y2.28
[Less: Provision for Diminution in value of Tnvestments 41.68 41.68
1,029.17 650.60
[1. Investments in Preference Shares (Carried at amortised cost)
Ungquoted fully paid up
Emami Paper Mills Limited * 5,903.66 5,440.23
14,55,000 8% Cumulative Redeemable Non-convertible Preference Shares of T100/-
cach
5,903.66 5,440.23

I1L Investments in Debentures - Unquoted fully paid up (Carried at amortised cost)

Vijaybhan Investments and Consultancy Private Limited* 727131 f,716.00
7,592 (6,716) 0% (6.75%) Optionally Convertible Non- Transferable Debentures of

71,00,000/7- each

Emami Estates Private Limted *= 2,221.23 2,080.78
25 Optionally Fully Convertible Debentures of 1,00,00,000/- each
Emami Home Private Limted ** 2,64:L67 2477 44
30 Optionally Fully Convertible Debentures of ¥1,00,00,000/- each
12,137.21 11,274.22
V. Investments in Limited Liability Partnership (Refer Note No. 48)
Capital Contribution to:
Lohitka Properties LLP 0.40 0.40
Supervalue Nirman LLP 0.01 0.01
0.41 0.41
19,146.45 17,441.46
Aggregate amount ot quoted investments - -
19,146.45 1744140

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments
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14,553,000 Preference Shares are redeemable at a premium of T300/- per share; out of which 3,25,000 Nes on 27th March,
2025, 2,00,000 Nos on 12th Augusi, 2025, 480,000 Nos on 20th January, 2026 and 2,50,000 Nos on 31st July, 2026 . However,
the investee Company Has an opton to redesm these preference shares betore the redemption date.

7,592 Debentures are convertible into equity shares at the option of the Debenture Holders, out of which 25 Nos are
redeemable on 30th September, 2019, 6,691 Nos are redeemable on 31st December, 2019 and 876 Nos are redeemable on
30th March, 2022

** These Debentures are redeemable at par or premium at the end of eight vears from the date of allotment, being 22nd
January, 2013 (Fmami Estates Privale Limited) and 7th March, 2013 {(Emami Home Private Limited), Howewver, the
Company has an option to redeem these debentures before the redemption date.

As at As at

31st March 2019 31st March 2018
(¥ in Lakhs) (T in Lakhs)

4 Loans (Non-Current)
(Secrired, constdered good)

Security Deposits 35.09 5270
Deposit under Joint Development Agreement 37,064.00 31,574.00
37,099.09 31,626.70

5 Other Financial Assets (Non-Current)
Advances to Others 586.00 586.00
Bank deposits with maturity of more than 12 months* 139.00 300.00
725.00 586.00

* Pledged with banks as security against term loan

6 Deferred Tax Assets (Net)
Deferred tax asset arising on account of :

Tax impact due to difference between tax depreciation and book depreciation 3342 2077
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plan through Profit & Loss 90.50 7102
Investment carried al fair value through Profit & Loss 708,30 476.27
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plan through Other Comprehensive Income 0.00 -
832.22 568.06
Deferred tax liability arising on account of :
Tax impact of expenses charged off in financial statement but liability under tax law
deferred 406.82 18.93
106.82 1893
Z0.00 represents amount less than T100 475.40 54913
7 Other Non Current Assets
Advances to Others - 11.20
Security Deposits 12247 79,25
122.47 90.45
§ Inventories [Carried at lower of Cost or Net Realisable Value)
A. Work-in-Progress
Land 7,539.01 7,038.60
Work-in-Progress 1,30,999.50 1.02,822.79
1,38,538.51 1,09,861.39
B. Finished Goods
Finished Properties 1,230.74 04172
1,230.74 991.72
3252 3,52

C. Stock-in-Trade

5.52 3.52
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D (i). Equity Shares - Unquoted fully paid up
[n Subsidiaries

Sncha Ashiana Private Limited

50,000 Equity Shares of T10/- gach

New Age Really Private Limited

30,000 Equity Shares of T10/- each

Delta PV Private Limited

2,47,511 Equity Shares of T10/- each

D (ii}. Debentures - Unquoted fully paid up
Prajay Urban rivate Limited
24,480 Optionally Convertible Debentures of ¥10,000/ - each

49 Investments (Current)

Paintings (Carried al cost)

Aggregate amount of quoted investments
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments

10 Trade Receivables
(Secured, constdered good)
Trade Beceivables

11 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances with Banks
Cheques in hand
Cash in hand
Bank deposits with maturity of less than 3 months *

* Pledged with banks as security against loans

12 Bank Balances other than above

Bank deposits with maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 menths *

* Pledged with banks as security againsl loans

13 Loans (Current
(Unsecured, considered good)
Security Deposit
Loans to Related Parties (Refer Note No. 41)
Loans to Others

14 Other Financial Assets
Advances to Related Parties (Refer Note No. 41)
Other Receivables

15 Current Tax Assets (Net)
Advance Tncome Tax and Refunds Rectivable (Not of Proviston)

16 Other Current Assets
Advances to Employees
Advances o Contractors/Supplicrs
Advances to Land Owners
Advances to Others
Balances with Governmen! Authorities

As al

31st March 2019
(¢ in Lakhs)

As at

31st March 2018
(¥ in Lakhs)

.00 5.00
3.00 3.00
1,178.62 1,178.62
1,186.62 1,1586.62
2445.00 2448.00
2,448.00 2,448.00
1,43,409.39 1,14,491.25
396,56 385,62
399.56 385.62
399,56 385.62
1,508.70 =
1,508.70 -
194.06 70.99
4.14 7.95
18.94 17.72
559.12 721.36
816.26 818.02
465.73 325.51
465.73 325.51
(.15 013
gt} 455,94 80,775.14
19,223.83 10,373.62
1,18,679.92 91,148.91
1,797.09 1,230.02
t.26 870,78
1,803.35 2,106.80
1,373.06 1,577.58
1,373.06 1,577.58
2015 1494
1,095.99 2,442.69
(59,19 165.00
19.91 30.56
5,732.40 3,032.44
7.527.64 5,685.63
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As at As at
31st March 2019 31st March 2018
(¥ in Lakhs) (T in Lakhs)
17 Equity Share Capital
Authorized Shares
%,52.30,000 Equity Shares of 32/ - vach 70500 500
20,00,000 Equity Shares of T100/ - each 2,000.00 2.000.00
2.705.00 7U5.00
Issued, subscribed & fully paid-up shares
2,79,38,889 (2,42.98,3892) Equily Shares of 12/ -each 35878 485.97
Share Capital Suspense Account pursuant Lo Scheme of Amalgamation - 7281
M| (36,40,457) Eguity Shares of ¥2/- sach
558.78 558.78
a. Reconciliation of the shares ouistanding at the beginning and at the end of the reparting period
As at ¥st March 2019 As at 31sk March 2018
Particulars No of shares (% in Lakhs) Noof shares (¥ in Lakhs)
Shares oulstanding at the beginming of the penod 2,42.98,392 4B5.U7 242,98.392 483.97
Add: tssued for consideration other than cash during the period 3640497 7281 - =
Shares Qutstanding at the end of the period 2,79,38,889 558.78 2,42,98,342 485,97

b. Rights attached to Equity Shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of $2/- per share, Each helder of equity shares is entitled to one vaote
per share. In the event of hquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitied to receive remaining assels of the
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equily shares held by the

sharehalders.

¢. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
As al 3151 March 20719

As at 315k March 2018

Name of Shareholders " holding % holding
No of shares  in the class Mo of shares in the elass
Diwakar Vinivog Private Limited 34,712,491 12.21% H, 12,491 14.04%
Suntrack Commerce Private Limited 249,84, 237 10.68% 29,84.237 12.28%
Bhanu Vyapaar Private Limited 27,78,89% 9.95% 7,783,899 [
Raviraj Vimivog Privale Limited 14,771,008} 05% 14,117,000 2.81%
Prabhakar Viniyog Private Linuled 13,92, (0K} 4498 13,592,000 5.73%
Suraj Vinivog Frvate Limited 12,444,491 1.63% 12,94.491 3.33%
As at As at
31st March 2019 31st March 2018
18 Other Fquity (T in Lakhs) (T in Lakhs]
Capital Reserve
Opening Balance 2,784.75 234249
Add; Transferred on Amalgamation - 7,26
Closing Balance 2,789.75 2,789.75
Revaluation Reserve
Opening Balance Q7.0 -
Add: Transferred on Amalgamation - 967,90
Closing Balance 967.90 967.90
General Reserve
Opening Balance 11,648 .88 -
Add: Transterred on Amalpamation - 11648, 88
Closing, Balancn 11,648.85 11,648,588
Retained Earmnings
Opening Balance (47.26) {26640
Add: Transferrod on amalgamation - 5,325,460
Lesis: Ind AS Impact of Transferor Company - (758.549)
Less: Cancellation of Investiment on amalgamation = 5,7% 58
Add: Profit for the year 7300 37685
25.74 (47.26)
Other Comprehensive Income
Opening Balance (L {5.72)
Add: During the year 25000 .38
25066 (.66
Total Reserves and Surplus 15,682,493 15,359.93

i. Capital Reserve - Capital Reserve was created on amalgamations.
Ii. Revaluation Reserve -

a5 and when they arise.

Revaluation Reserve was created on revaluation of land withestructure held as fixed assots.
i General Reserve - General Reserve was orvated on amalgamation which is kept aside to muet the future requirements o
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Asat As at

31st March 2019  31st March 2018
(T in Lakhs) (T in Lakhs)

19 Borrowings (Non-Current

Secured
lerm Loans from Banks (Refer Note No. 42[A]) 2481208 33,0410
Term Loans fram Non Banking Financial Companies (Reter Note No. 42[B]) 11,374.44 17,654.89
36,186.52 50,698.99
Unsecured
Redeemable Non Convertible Debentures (Refer Note No. 43[A]) 14,989.35 2:4,990.65
Term Loans from Non Banking Financial Companies {Refer Note No. 43[B]) 20,739.84 20,568.17
35,729.19 45,555.82
71,915.71 96,254.81
20 Other Non-Current Liabilities
Against Development 951.32 =
951.32 -
21 Provisions (Non-Current)
Provision for Employee Benefits (Refer Note No. 37)
Gratuity 8871 111.02
Leave Encashment 39.62 79.64
129.33 190.86
22 Borrowings {Current
Secured
Overdraft from Banks* 6,476,46 3,903.00
6,476.46. 3,903.00
Unsecured
Overdraft from Banks ** 43,333.57 1359512
Redeemable Non Convertible Debentures (Refer Note No. 44]A]) 2,500.00 -
Term Loans from Non Banking Financial Companies (Refer Note No, 44[B]) 13,000.00 9,500.00
Loans from Related Party * 19,436.00 20,765.46
Loans from Other Bodies Corporate * 35,051.31 8,730.77
1,13,340.88 52,521.35
1,19,817.34 56,424.35

= (i) ¥5,585.85 Lakhs secured by the securitiés as mentioned in Note No. 42[A](a), 42[A](c) & 42[A](d) under the heading
"Term Loan from Banks" as this facility is a sub-limit thereof.

* (i) 2940.61 Lakhs secured by hypothecation on receivables of the project at "Zandu Sigma Estates”, 70 Gokhale Road,
Dadar, Mumbai 400025 coupled with the corporate guarantee by a related party.

** §43,353.57 Lakhs secured by pledge of third party's fixed deposits

" Repayable on demand

23 Trade Pavables

Total outstanding dues of Micro Enferprises and Small Enterprises - a6
Total putstanding dues of creditors other than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 990.94 1,135.38
990.94 1,138.44

24 Other Financial Liabilities
Current Maturitics of Long Term Debts (Refer Note No. 42[A], 42[B], 43[A] & 43[B]) 62,741.36 47,621.33

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 10,773.14 3,250.13
Advances from Related Parties (Refer Note No. 41) 484.37 12.50
Advances from Others 2,168.19 2,113.19
Cheques Overdrawn - 263
Deposits Received 10.00 200
Liabilities for Expenses 942 8.64
Employee Benefits Payables 62.27 6.40

1,274.39 531.88

Retention Money

77,523.14 53,548.70
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25 Other Current Liabilities
Advances from Cuslomers
Fluctuating Capital Account with LLP
Duties & Taxes Payables

26 Provisions (Current)
Provision for Employee Benefits (Refer Note No. 37)
Gratuity
Lieave Encashment

As at

J1st March 2019
(T in Lakhs)

As al

31st March 2018
(% in Lakhs)

50,979.07 49,153.50
46.41 46.41
858.04 34857
51,884.12 49,548.48
A48 840
7168 5.95
132,16 14.35
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27 Revenue from Operations
Operating Income
Sale of Trade Goods
Sale of Plots/ Flats

Other Operating [ncome
Nomination Charges
Cancellation Charges
Legal Fees Recefved

Compensation against Land acquisition

28 Other Income
Inlerest Income from
Subsidiaries
Assaciates
LLP
Other Bodies Corporate
Debenlures
Fixed Deposits
Income Tax Refund
Others

Dividend Received

Profit on Sale of Non-Current Investment

Profit on Sale of Current Investment
Profit on Sale of Mutual Fund Units
Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets

Rent Received

Service Charges Received
Miscellaneous Income

Income from Investment measured at amortised cost

29 Purchases
Land
Trade Goods

Year ended Year ended
31st March, 20019 31st March, 2018
(T in Lakhs) (T in Lakhs)
7783 23.04
6,136.18 -
6,214.11 23.04
91.49 53.24
42,29 .67
0.03 3.76
26.67 -
160,48 123,69
6,374.59 146.73
342,56 205.18
87.07 23h.56
6,059,55 5,534.80
5,770.45 4,792.89
- 453,33
4277 136,39
73.49 200,74
193,37 173,47
12,569.26 11,733.42
11647 11649
- 23.00
- (.10
6.78 (184
- 1.06
4,00 -
3.77 4.08
2.00 3.29
450041 -
588.43 149.76
13,157.69 11,883.18
631.85 6,078.18
7932 23.35
71117 6,101.53
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30 Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Stock-in-Trade and Work-in-Progress

3

Year ended

Year ended

¥1st March, 2019 31st March, 2018

I. Opening Stock
land
Work-in-Progress
Finished Properties
Shares

Debentures
Stock-in- Trade

Add : Finished Properties (Transferred on Amalgamation)
Less: GST input claimed for VAT & Excise Duty

11, Closing Stock
Land
Work-in-Progress
Finished Properties
Shares

Debeniures
Stock-in- Trade

Changes in Inventories {I -11)

Emplovee Benefils Expense

Salaries, Gratuity & Allowances
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds
Staff Welfare Expenses

32 Finance Cosis

Interest Expenses
Add: Other Borrowing Costs

Less: Capitalised to Investment Property

33 Project Expenses

Materials Cansumed
Development Cost

Payments (o Conltractors
Constiltants Fees

Project Promotion & Expenses
Insurance

Repair & Maintenance

Rates & Taxes

Corpoarate Social Responsibility
Travelling & Conveyance
Other Operating Expenses

(T in Lakhs) (T in Lakhs)
703860 960.42
1,02, 82279 TR227 87
99172 .
1,186.62 1,186.62
2448.00 2,448.00
3.52 -
1,14,491.25 R1,822.91
- 9a1.72
- 558.95
1,14,491.25 82,255.67
7.539.01 7.038.60
1,30,999,50 1,02,822,79
1,230.74 ga] 72
1,186.62 1,186.62
2,448.00 2448.00
552 352
1,43,409.39 1,14,491.25
(28,918.14) (32,235.57)
1,553.31 1,416.958
h2.66 31.17
29.75 14.03
1,645.72 1,482.18
2531343 20.567.45
1,521.67 1,378.02
26,835.10 2194547
128.25 573.34
26,706.82 21,372.13
1,924.72 1,5850.00
951.32 -
12,466.59 10,846.98
535.57 579,32
571.24 383.32
4871 (5.79)
145.38 al.5a6
1,707.38 73.00
10.00 =
63.87 124.74
245.18 135.88
18,669.96 14,149.02
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Year ended Year ended
3ist March, 2009  31st March, 2018
(% in Lakhs) (¥ in Lakhs)
34 Other Expenses
Electricity Charges 10.37 262
Rent Fa0d 48.29
Repairs & Maintenance 60.78 3068
Rates & Taxes 1.92 #7.98
Advertisement & Publicity 2.83 4.07
Custodial ees 1.60 4.32
Listing Fees 12.95 13.02
Directors! Sitting Fees 4.93 919
Postage & Courier .97 13,69
Printing & Stationery 9.03 7.69
Royalty 10.00 10.00
[nsurance 1.65 1.32
Brokerage - 6.02
Corporate Social Responsibility - 295.00
Travelling & Convevance 40.35 25.30
Legal & Professional Fees 142,92 130,15
Share of Loss in LLP 0.00 5.22
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assefs 1.16 -
Expenses from Investment measured at amortised cost - 90.13
Miscellaneous Expenses 47.55 3448
Auditors' Remuneration (Refer Note No. 36) 13.13 19.08
441.78 841.26
35 Earnings per Share (EPS)
Earnings per Share is calculated as follows:
Profit after tax attributable to Fquily Shareholders 73.00 378.85
Weighted average number of equity shares 2,79,38,889 2,79,38,889
Nominal value of Equity Share 2.00 200
Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share 0.26 1.36
36 Auditors' Remuneration
Audit Fees 9.00 .04
Tax Audit Fees 1.00 0,50
1.50 1:85

Limited Review
Other Matters 1.63 7.59

13.13 19.08
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3T As per actuarial valuations as an 31sE March, 2009 and rocogmized e the finanelal statemont i respect of Tmployves benetit schomes

Particulars

f o ke
| Asat 31st March, 2019 As at 31st March, 2018
[ ; Leave - Eeaye
Cratuity Grafuity | ..
: Cocashment Y | Encostument

MNon-fundisd

Nom-funded

Miom=frndied

Non-tunded

A. Expenses Recognised in the income stalement

1. Current Service Cost 2245 2048 17-62 1o
2 Interest Cosl ul4 f.d3 &.07 405
3, Loss/(Gain) on selthement = =
4. Net interest cost/ (income) on the Nel Defined Benefit Liability /{ Assets) = =
3. Re-measurement (or Acturial)rain) Mloss arising [rom: =
- Change in demegraphic assumplions - - -
- Change in financial assumphions 1.67 4 (0.82) (U EhY
- Experience variance (1o, Actual expense vs assumphons) (1.67) 243 [8.94) 577
- Others , 2 = =
G, Return on plan assels, excluding amount recognised in net inferest expenses - - -
7. Re-measurement (or Actual){gain)/loss arising because of change in effect of asset cetling - - - -
4. Total Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss 3210 249,335 15,494 34,05
B. Assels and Liability
1. Present value of Obligalion 150.20 11130 11943 83,749
2 Fair Value of Plan Assols - . - -
A Funded Status [Surphus/{deficit)] (150.20) {111.30) (119:43) {83.79)
. Effects of Assets Coiling, if any = = . =
5. Nel asset/{liability) recognized in balance sheel (150.20) (L1130 (119.43) (83.79)
C. Change in Present Value of Obligation
1. Prosent value of Obligation as at beginning of period 11943 8374 10485 2064
2 Current Service Cost 2.9 248 17.62 10.03
3. Interest Expenses or Cosl 9.14 45 807 405
Re-measirement (or Acturial)(gain) /loss arising from: = = =
-Change in demographic assumplions - - = -
- Change in financial assumptions 167 14 (1hH2) {1090}
- Experience variance (L.e. Actual expense vs assuimptions) (1.67) 248 (5.594) 2177
- (Hhers - - . =
1 Past bervice Cosl
5. Effect of change in foreign exchange rates - . -
. Benefils Paid (1,33) {40 (1.34) (2.85)
7. Acgulsilion Adjustment - - - .
8, Effect of business combimaltions or dispasals . . -
4. Present value of Obligation as at the end of period 150.20 111.30 11943 B3.79
D, Other Comprehensive Income
1. Acturial {gain)/losses - -
- Change in demaographic assumptions - .
- Change in linancial assumptions 1.67 - {1.82) -
- Experience variance (Le. Actual expense vs assumptions) (1.67) = {B.2) -
- Dthers - - - -
2. Return of plan assets, excluding amount recognised in net interest expenses
3. Re-measurement (or Acturial)(gain)/loss arising becauss of change i effect of aset coiling - -
4. Components of deflned benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income .00 [5.76)
i Financial Assumptions
1. Discount Rate (%) TS A% 7730 ek
2. salary Growth Rate (per annum) o005 6.00% 6.0 (0%
F. Demographic Assumptions
1. Mortality Rate (% of LALM De-08}) 5000 5.00% S.400% 3.00%
2. Withdrawal Rate (per annum) 1 to B% 1% b0 8% 1% to 8% 1% o &%

T0.00 represents amount less than 7100
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Sensitivity Analysis -

5:;.'__1111:(;‘1:“ petarial assum plions fo the duterminption of e defimed bepelit ,|[|[|“J|“ iy are discoumt rate, expected salary onease and mortality,
Phe sensitivity analysis bilow have besin determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumption ocetrming at the erd of the reporting
I-ll-'l‘iL‘h|. while l""l-“”H all ahwr Assumiphions corslapl, I'he resull ab sonsiavibe rindi_\.'ul-.' 15 Fvan barlionw:

£ i Lakhs)

Particulars

Gratuity

Leave Encashment

Asat 3lst

As al Alst

As ar 31st

Asat 3]st

March, 2019 | March, 2008 | March, 2004 | March, 2018
Diefined Benefit Obligation (Base) 15020 119,43 11130 85.79
{ & v Laklis)
Giratuity

Particulars As al sl March, 2019 Asal Ast Mareh, 2018

Decrease Increase [Dogcrease Inerease
Discounl Rale {-/+1%) 137.99 143.23 126.25 11333
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 5.19% A 371% S %
Salary Growth Rate {-/+1%) 145,50 L3767 11273 126,80
(% change comparad o base due 1o sensitivity) 46% 4.97% -3.61% 0.18%
Attrition Rate {-/£50%) 149,41 150,52 119006 11973
(% chanpe compared to base due to sens{Hyity) “0.26% 0.21% 0.31%: 0L.263%

{4 in Luklis)

Leave Lncashment

Particulars As at 31st March, 2019 Asat 35t March, 2018
Decrease Increase Dogrease f [ncrease
Discount Rate (-/+1%) 115.30 107,57 89.57 8236
(% change compared to base due to sensilivity) 268% -3.34% +.40% 399,
Salary Growth Rate (-/+1%) 1084 11:4.58 H1.495 B9.96
("% change compared Lo base due o sensitivity) -266% 295% L AR 486%
Attrition Rate (-/+50%) 11094 11162 8.3 8612
(% change compared to base due to sensilivitv) DA% (.29% D42 NA8%

Thu sensitivity analysis prasented above may ol be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the
change In assumptions would cecur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

There 15 ne change in the method of valuation for the prior period.

Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit (Obligation

Graluity Leave Fneashment
Particuliars 207819 201718 2018-19 2M7-18
Weiphted-averape duration (based on discounted cashilows) 282 187 318 2.50
{ & I Lakhis)
[ Gratuity Leave Encashment
Expected cash flows over the next (valued on nndiscounted basis) 2071 8-19 2A17-18 2018-14 2017-18
| Years ol 48 446 7168 320
25 Years 1614 291.70 B9.74 7731
6 1o 10 Years 25:80 R 1237 494
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6 Carrving valoe and Fair Value of Financial | nstromienis is as follows:

o Lakhsi
| As-al 3151 March, Z01% As L 31st Maich, 2018
Partimie FVoct FVTPL | Amartized Cost Total VO VT ""'"{Eﬂf‘"i fotal
Financial As2ots:
Mon-Current
Frvestinent n eguty instmmenss 10201 To.00 L0517 A3 1 76,00 26,60
[pvestment in Preferoney Sharis ST e S4a0.21 344023
[mvestment in Debenturas 121371 12131 11727433 112374707
Investment in [L1LPs 4t 041 (15 8} 041
| oirs 37,0890 37 (08 VA2 A626.70
CItier Fimangial Assets 725.00 TRE0 Sha.U0 H5e.00
Current = X
[nvestmunts 399 30 36956 Rl J3ES.62
Trade Kecervalbles 1,A08, 71 - B
Cash anil Cash Fquivalents ~ Hieon B18.03 BI85 |
(ther Bank Balances 453,73 463,77 3255 32551
I nans 11867092 1,18,679,52 0148.92 | 4802
Otthar Fimancial Asselis 180335 1,803,385 ERT 210680
Total 1,029.17 18,040,537 1,61.574.01 1,80, 644,05 650,60 1671445 | 12737397 | 1,44,729.02
Financial Liabilities:
Non=-Curment
Bormowings TIH13T1 7191571 G 254810 | BB2581
Current
Borrowings 119,817 34 1,19.817,34 SEA24M | 5642434
Trade Fayvables Q40194 9. 1,158.44 113844
Cither Financial Liabilities T7o25.14 THaA14 S3BART0 | 33.548.70
Total = - 27024712 I 27024712 - 2.07.366.29 | 2,07,366.29 |

3¢ Fair Value Hierarchy

The tableshown below analbses Ananciad instrorments corred at farr value, The different levels have been defined below;-
Lewel 1 Cuoted Praces (unodjusted) b active mazkets for dentical assats or liabilities
Tevel 2i Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, gither directly (Le., as prices] or indirecty (ie, derived

from prices )

Level 3¢ Inputs for the asset or hability that are not based on observabie market data {unckservable inprats)

#} Finameial assets measured at fair value at 31st Mareh 2019 [ ine ki)

Particulars fovel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tomal
Financial Asscts
frvestment at FVTTT

In preference shares 390366 3,903 00

[n debenturey 121353 1213721
Iivestment at FYUC]

Iri ee|uily shares 1.029.17 Lt b
Fimancial assete measired al fair value at 31gt March 2018 & o1 Luklis)
Particulars - Level | Level 2 Level 3 Taral
Financial Assets
Investment at FVTPL

In preference: sharos 544023 54023

Iy delsintores 11,274.32 1127472
Investment at FVOCT

In eaquity shares 63060 falha

b) Financial instroments at ammortized cost

The carrying st of financial assets and Hoancial labilites messured at amortised cost in the financial statements ane a reasomable approdmation of theie fagr
wahies since the Company does not anticipate that the carrying amounts would besignificantly difforent from the values thal would eventually be received or settlod,

) Draring the voar there fas been nofransfer from ome leved to another

40 Financial risk management objectives and polices

The Coempany's principal finuncial Halalites comprse of Borrowings, trade and other payabics. The main purpese of these fmancnl Babilines is o Arance the
L_'-Jmpcny',_\"npvrahi'lm I'hi E.'..'umpani,"i ]1nn-"1]:'ﬂ|: Fancial assets include foans: wode and other recervables and cash & eash |'||u|\r.]|r.1|1ts that derive d;rm‘tlg.* o 1

|1|_‘I|'13I'I|‘Ih.4.
Thie Company is exposed b market rigk, credit risk and hquidity risk. Thee Company’s Management oversees the management of these risks and ensures that the

Company's Hnancnal risks actvitivs are governed by appropriate policies and procedures amd that finance nsk are wdentified, memsured and managed o peeordance

with the Company’s policies and sk objecHves.
The Toard of Threctors agrees and reviews policiies for managing vach of these dsks, which are summarnised below,

A, Credit Risk
Credit risk s the nak of loss thiat may anse on ouistanding fnancial instruments if a counter party defadlt on is obligations. The Company's exposune o credit risk

arises mijurly from trade reeeivables and other Hnaneial assets.
Othier financial-assets like bank deposils, advances and seeunty deposits ore with banks, government bodies, utility providers, contractors and others and bence; the
Compiany does not expect any credit risk with respect (o trade receivables and other Hoancial assets,

With respect o mrade receivables, the Company has consntued teams o reviess the reoeivables on penodic bases and ke MECeSRATY. I‘ﬂ[ﬂ]‘m

The followmg fable summanzes 1he lhnl'l;-t* I that Do glloweaner mensared LS BT

b owhimieer reguired.
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{3 '] agles)]

Reconcilialion of Luss
Allowance

As on April 1, 2017
Allowance bor Expectesd
kil Lisss ¥
As oo March 31, 2018 = =
Allowwande for ]'.:ipcclL‘d
Credit Loss

As on March 37, 2009 -

Trade Receivablos Security Dheposibs

B, Liguidity Risk
e Company's principal sources of leuidity dre borrowimy, Bank overdeafts, loans from bodies corpotats, debentures and cash and cash equulvalents and the cash low

that is gemerated from eperatlong. The Company believes that these are sufricient (o meel its current fgquiremants, Awcordingly ne lytidedy risk 8 pesdeived,

The table balow summarises the matirity profile of this Company's financial Tiabilidies oy the reporting date, The amounts are based on contrachual undiscounted

'pm,'r:u-nb:

[ & in bakirsl
Particulirs Maturity period [31st March 2019] 315t March 2008
Finanrial Liabilities - Current
Horrowings within 1 vear 119,817 S6424.34
Tride Pavable withii T vear 90,54 10834
(Ohier Fimancial Tiakilitics within 1 year Fagi-rafy b 33548.70
Financial Liabilities - Non-Current
Borrowings Harbamen 1= v 191571 O, 5 H]

O, Markel Rizk

a Interest Rale Risk
The Company has taken debt (o Brance its working capital | which exposes ibbo interest rate risk. Borrowingsdssied at variable rates expose the Company 1o integest ri

risi
{7 i Lakdis)
Particulars J1st March 2019] 31st March 2018
Variable rate borrowing 1,73,451.30 1,35,141.32
Fiaeidl rate borrowing 91,796.23 (58,405, 29
I'otal hermowings 205.247.55 203,550,601

Market risk s the rsk that fair vabue of futurs cash tlows of & fingncial instruments will fluctuase beranse of change in market prices. Market sk comprises bwo G peod
riske tterest rede risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity / real estate nsk.

I'he Company isaffected by the price volatility of certain commodities/ real estates. lts operating acHvites require the engoing development of real sstale. Thie Campary's
management has doveloped and chacted & sk managemont steabegy regarding commeodity/ real estale price nsk and its mitigation. The Company 18 subjectns e prive
risk variables, which are expected to vary in line with the prevailing market conditions.

Interest rate sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rate, with all nther variahles held constane. Thi fmpact on entity's profitbeloe

tae is lue to change in the far value of borrowings,
Particulars

Interest Sensitivity®

Interest Hales increase by 100 basts poinbs

Intenest Ratey decreasae by 100 basis points
“Holedng all atlwer variables constant

st March 2019|315t March 20018

2.652]
2551

[EXE)
203

br. Price Risk
Uhe Company's exposuree Lo price risk arises from investments held and classified a6 FVTPL gr TVOCL Tu manage the price risk ansing from investmants, e Company

diversifes its portiolio of assets.

Sensitivity Analysis

Partivulars Jisk Mareh 2009] 315t March 2018
Prive Sensitivity*

Price increase by 5% FVOCI 5140 3253
Prive decrease by 5%- FVOC] i51.4n] (23,53
Price morease by 3%- FVTFL 1704 H35.72
Irice decrease by 5% FVTTL (90204} {H35.72}

“Holding ail sther variables constant
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Naotes to Finaiteial Statements

41 Related Party Transactions
1. List of Related Partics as tequired by IND AS-24, “Related Parly Disclosures”, are given below:
Al Related Party where Control Exists

i. Subsidiaries :
L Sneha Ashiang Private Limated (100%
2 New Age Realty Private Limited (60%)
5 Delta PV Provate Limited (33%)
i, Associates
1. Roseview Developers Private Lomited (50%)
2. Prajay Urban Private Limited (50%)
A Bermgral Emami Housing Limitad (30%)
4 Swanhousing & Infra Private Limited (30%)
iii, Limited Liability Partnerships ;
1. Lohitka Properties LLP (T0%)
2. Supervalue Nirman LLP {1%)

B, Other Parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year
i. Key Management Personnel & Other Directors:
a) Key Management Personnel:

1. Mr. Rajosh Bansal Whale-time Direclor
2. My, Girfae Kumar Choudhary Whole-timre Divector & CFO
3. Dr. Nitesh Komar Cupta Chief Executive Officer {wead, 20,11.2018)
4. Mr, Sanjay Choudhary Whole-time Director (Ceased woet. 09.08.2017)
3. B Ralyanasundaram Bamamurthy Whole-Time Director (Ceased w.ef. 3I0.03.2018)
6. Ms. Payel Jain Company Secretary
b} Other Directars:
L M. Abhijit Dalta Mon-Execulive Chairman (Independent)
1 Wir. Han Mohan Marda dependent Director
4. Mr, Ram Gobind Ganeriwala Independent Director
4. Mrs, Karabi Sengrupta Independent Dirdctor
3. M. Debasish Bhaumik Independent Directar
. Mr. Basant Kumar Parakh Mon-Executive Nom-Independent Director
ii. Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel
1. M. ¥ashe Vardhan Bansal Sen of M. Rajeésh Bansal (Ceased weef, 31.12.2018)

iii. Entities where one Key Management Personnel have significant influence
1. D Infracity Private Limdted
I Raj Infraproperties Private Limited

iv. Promoters

1. Bhanu Vyapaar Private Liniled 3. bura) Vinivoyg Private Limited
2 Diwakar Vimvog Private Linited 6. Emanmi Capital Markots Limitod
1 Suntrack Comunerte Private Limitod 7. Emami Frankross Limited
1 Prabhakar Vinivoy Private Limited 8. Emami Paper Mills Linnited

v, Entities wherein the Company's promoters have significant influence
1. Add Albatross Properties Private Limited 22, Pavadise Apriculture Privato Limited
2. AMRI Haspitals Limited 2% Prime Constractions Private Limited
A Aviro Vyapaar Private Limited 24, Sanjecvani Vyapaar LLP
4. Creative Cullivalion Private Limited 25, Bneha Skyhigh Private Limdted
5, Emami Agrotech Limited 26, Sneha Abasan Private Limited
6. Emami Beverapes Limited 27. 5Snieha Enclave Private Limited
7. Emami Buildcon Private Limitod 28 Snicha Gardens Private Limited
8. Emami Cement Limiked 29. Sneha Niketan Private Limited
9. Entami Constructions Private Limited 30, South City Projects (Kolkata) Limited
10 Emami Estates Private Limiled A Anamika Kala Sangam Trust
11, Emami Home Private Limited 32 Aty Hitech Private Limited
12 Emammi Limited 33, Beponia Textiles Private Limited
T3 Emanu Projects Private Linuted 3. Camellias Merchants Private Limited
14 Enanid Nirman Private [imited 35, Bveningstar Trades Private Limited
15, Emami Vriddhi Comumercial Private Limited 36, Eveningstar Vinimay Private Limited
L&, Fastgrow Craps Private Limited 37. Fiddle Engineering Private Limitued
17. Thimst Properties Private Limited 38, Gendl Commuosale Privale Limited
18, Magmficient Vyapaar LLT 39, Polpit Vincom Privite Limited
19. Midkot Trades Private Limiled A0, Sureshine Vinimay Private Limited
), New Way Constructions Limited 41. Swans Home Private Linutad

21. Oriental Sales Agencies {(India) Private Limitec 42 Touchwin Tradecom Private Limited
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EMAMI REALTY LIMITED

Nates to Financial Statemeitls

vii. Disclosure as per Regulation 34(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Resulation 20015

Loans and advances in the nature of loans given to Subsidiares and Associales: (T in Lakiis)

. Amounit ontstanding Maximum Balance outstanding
Name of the Party during the vear
3st March 2019 | 31st March 2018 2018-19 2017-18

Loans:

Sneha Ashiana Private Limited 1,767.16 342,40 1,767,168 34240
New Age Realty Private Limited 221045 2,20575 2,21045 2,205.75
Delta PV Private Limited 1,634 .85 1,440.82 1,634.83 1,440.82
Bengal Emami Housing Limited 4,081.69 3,225.44 4,081.69 3,745.98
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EMAMI REALTY LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements

45 The Company is 1% partnee in [ohitka Proparties LLE Mumbai which i developing a roal estate project presently umder construction. The fingncial
atatement of the above entity for the Financial Yolr 200819 have pob ver bedn fnaliesd and quditid and thes pot made available ta b Campany fir
incarperation fn its awn fnancial statement. Accordingly, no effect af the profimbility, Fany, relating o tie above enllly has beon constdered in the

accounts

46 Capital Managemen!

Ihe Company's abjective when managing capital (defined as net debt and equity) is to saleguand the Company's ability B continue as @ going concern in
order to provide retumns o the shareholders and benetit for other stakeholders, while protecting and strengthening the Balance Sheet through the
approprinte balance of debl and equity funding. The Company manages {ts capital structire and mikes adjustments to it n fight of changes to econemic
cond itions and strategic objectives of the Company

The Company momtors capital using a gearving ratio, which s net debt divided by total equity plus net debt as below:
(& e Laki

["articulars 31st March 2019 31st March 2018
Boarrowings | Non-Current and current inchuding current maturities of nog-Currert borrowings) 265, 247.55 0355061
Cither Financial Liabilities L0861 2,677.13
Less: Cash and Cash eguivalents (includimg other Bank balances) 1.251.50 1,143 53
MNet Debit (A) 2,67,974.20 2,05,084.32
Iquity Share Capital G58.78 33878
Oither Fguity 15,682.93 15,3349 94
Equity (B) 16,241.71 15,918.73
Equity plus Net Debt {C=A+B) 1,84,215.91 22000304
Gearing Ratio (D=A/C) 94,207, 92,507
47 (i) Information regarding lnwestment Properly i dn Lakdi)
Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
Farr Valug of opening balance of Investment property 5,730.73 4,375.44
Fair Value of dosing balance of Investmont praperty 5,936.51 3,728.73

The Fair value of Investment property has boen classified as Lovel 3 fair value in the fair value hierachy due (o the use of unobservable inputs, There has

bien no change in vilwation lechnigques used since prior years,

(i} Amount recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss for Investment Properties (i Lakhs)

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
Rental Income ERIY]
Liss: Direcl aporating expenses that did not genetale renlal income - -
Loss: Direcl opermting expenses that generaie renfal income 239
Profitf(Loss) from investment property before depreciation 073 =
Luss: Depreciation 20,24 -
Profiff{ Lass) from investment property after depreciation {13.51) -

44 Investment in Limited Liability Parinerships

Mame

Tatal Capital (% in Lakhsj

201819 2017-18 201819 2017-18
i Lohitka Propertics LLFP 10 0% .40 040
i Supvﬂ'aluu'b\‘[m'mn nr 1% 1% 0.01 .01
49 {i) Current Non-Trade Investmenls Purchased and sold during the year
2018-19 201718
Particulars Purchased Sold Purchased Sold
Nos. of Units. | Nos. of Units. | Nos, of Units, | Nos, of Uniis.
Latak Money Market Schenie - Direct Plan Growth b, 945 455 &,988 435 - -
Eotak Fleater Short Term— Direct Mlan - Grow'th . - 21.955.0M 21955031
(i) Current Non-Trade Investments Purchased and sold during lhe year {  fre-Lakirs)
Particulars 2015-19 2017-18
Painting
Opening alance 383.62 89,66
Add: Munchase 13.94 -
Less Sale - 4145
Closing Balance U458 386.62

Expenditure in Foreign Currency (On Pavment Basis) { in Lakhs)

a——

Particulars 2018149 2017-18 7 =
= e - = a AWA /N
Emplovee Training Bxpenses 3790 2851 oY) YN
Others - 27.01 O \e

Tuotal 37.90 56.42




EMAMI REALTY LIMITED

Notes fo Financinl Statentents

51 Contingent Liabilities & Commitmerls
. Contingent [iabililies

fof oo Larnfrsd

Particulars 3ist March 2019 | 31st March 2018
a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt

Service Tax 3304 -

b} Guarantee and counter guaranive given

Bank Guarantee Gy 4551
it. Commitmenlts

[Major Contract Commitment outstanding for land purchase | XTI 725,00 |

52 The Company has entered into Jomi Development Agreements for devielopment of Prajects al Bliubaneswar, Chennai, Coimbators and Kalkata,

53 Against the [DA Assignment Agreement entered by New Age Realty Dvi [d, subsidiory of the Company with M/S Presidium Construclion
(Coimbatore) Pvt. Led: and M/5 Karthikeya Ancillanies Put. | td. (the Im1~:f|r.'|rd| top assigriment of JOA entered Inko bebween the Tandlosd and Presidium
Construction Pyt Ltd. tor development of an immovable proporty situated at Avinashi Road, Coimbatare and further to this, againgt Area Assigrument
Agreemimt entered between the Company and the said Landlord, the said Landlord has served Termination Notice and legal proceedings lod to an
appointment of Justice I' K Balasubramanyan, Retired Judge of Supreme Court of India, as a sale arbitralor purspant to the order of Honble Madras High
Court. who lias passed an award on st June 207 While interalia confirming the possession of fhe subject land to the said subsidiary, he has not allowsd
intorest on monies pald to the Landlord from the beginning. The Company and its said subsidiary have proferred an application u/s 34 of the Arbitration
and Recanaliation Act 1996 for setting aside the award before the District Court, Coimbatare. The matter has been admitted and aceorthngly, the results
af the proceedings are expected o e in its favour. The Landlord has not been able to pav as por theaward passed by the said arbitmior

54 Segment Reporting
The Company is engaged in the business of Real Estate Development, which us per Ind AS 108 on "Segmuvnt Reporting” is considersd to be the only
reportable business segment. The Company i operating only in India and there is fo other sigmificant geographical segment.

55 There were no dues oulstanding for more than 45 days to any Micro Fnterprise and Small Enterprises suppliers. The above infurmation regarding Micro
Enlerprise and Small Enterprises has bean delermined to the extent such communication has been received from the respective parties by the Company

This has been relled upon by the Auditors.
[ Lakles)

Farticulars 31st March 2019] 31st March 2018

i) the Principal amiount and  the interest due thereon NTL 106
remaining unpaid o any supplier as at the end of each

gerounting véar
i) the amount of nterest paid by the buver in lerms of NIL NII
Sechon 16 along with amount of the pavment made w0 e
supplicr  bevord  the  appointed  day  during  the cach
accounting yveir

i) the amount of interest due and payable for the peried af NIL NIL
delay in making payment {which have been paid but beyond
appointed day during the year) but withoul adding the
interest specified yoder MSMEL Act 2006

iv} the amount of interest accrued and remaining uopaid at NIL NIL
Ihie ead of cach acoounting years armd
v} the amount of further Inlerest remaining due and payable NIL NIL

in the sueceeding year until such date when the Interest dues
as above ane actually paid to the small enlerprises for the
purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditune under
seclion 23

5h Corporate Social Responsibility (A u diekdrs)
Particulars F1st March 2019| 31si March 2018

u) Gross amount required to be spent by (1w Company B0 707

during the vedr

h) Amount spent during the year
(i) Construction / aciquisition of any asset - =
(i1} On purpose other than {f) above 110N 203,00




EMAMI REALTY LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements

37 Pravions year's fyures have beon rearrangged o regrouped wherever necessary
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